
 

ANNUAL MEETING AGENDA 

Thursday, December 7, 2023 at 7:30 a.m. 

One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 11th Floor 
 

 

 Call to Order 

 
Public Comment 

 
Consent Agenda – Items removed to be considered separately  

a) *Minutes from October 5, 2023 JCBRA Board Meeting 

b) *JCBRA Financial Statements thru November 30, 2023 

c) *JCBRA Invoice Report thru October 27, 2023 

 

 *BRA Active Project Updates 
 

 Old Business – None. 

 

 New Business  
a. *Discuss/Approve work order #121 for Machining Momentum, located in Hanover Township, in 

the amount of $24,350. 

b. *2023 End of Year Report 

c. *2024 Scope of Work  

d. Authorize JCBRA Staff to prepare recommendation to General Government Committee to renew 

terms for James Shotwell, Ted Hilleary, and A.J. Crownover which expire on 3/31/24, and if 

willing to serve another three-year term.  

e. *2024 Election of Officers 

f. *2024 EG/JCBRA Management Agreement 

g. *2024 Meeting Schedule 

h. *2024 JCBRA Budget 

 

Director’s/Staff Comments 

 
Board Member Comments 

 

Task Force Comments/Updates 
a) City BRA Update 

b) Fishbeck Update 

 

 Community/Public Comments 

 
Next Meeting: Board Meeting scheduled for Thursday, January 4, 2024 at One Jackson Square, East 

Conference Room, 11th Floor, at 7:30 a.m 

  

Adjourn     

 

*indicates attachment 



 
 

JCBRA Board Meeting Minutes 
October 5, 2023 

One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 11
th 

Floor 

 
Present: (5) Brad Brelinski, AJ Crownover, Ted Hilleary, Mark Schopmeyer, and 

Jim Seitz 

 

Absent: (4) Laura Schlecte, Pete Jancek, Brad Runkel, and Steve Shotwell 
 

Task Force Partners: None 

 
EG Staff: Andrea Clary and Alex Masten 

 

Others: Jeff Huey, JDL and Dave Stegink, Fishbeck 

 
Call to Order:  7:34 a.m. Treasurer Hilleary 

 

Public Comment:  None   
 

Approve Meeting Minutes of September 7, 2023: Motion by Mr. Brelinski to approve the 

meeting minutes of September 7, 2023, as presented. Supported by Mr. Schopmeyer. Approved 

unanimously. 

 

JCBRA Invoice Report: Motion by Mr. Brelinski to approve the JCBRA Invoice Report 

totaling $12,322.09 through September 01, 2023, as presented. Supported by Mr. Schopmeyer. 

Approved unanimously by roll call vote. 

 

Approve JCBRA Financial Statements through August 31, 2023: Motion by Mr. Hilleary to 

approve the JCBRA Financial Statements through August 31, 2023, as presented. Supported 

by Mr. Brelinski. Approved unanimously by roll call vote. 

 
Project Updates: Project updates were included in the board packet. Ms. Masten highlighted a 

few projects: Jackson County Armory Commissary building roof has partially caved in, so the 

project has been terminated while the County Commission evaluates demolition or renovation. 

She also highlighted the Michigan Psychological Services project saying eligibility has been 
accepted by the EPA, and now the owner needs to provide plans, drawings, and a budget to help 

estimate taxable values.  

 
Old Business:  None to report.  

 

New Business:  Consider approval of work order #120 for Jackson District Library supplemental 

investigation for soil gas vapors and a possible vapor mitigation system design. The total is 
$28,500. Mr. Brelinski asked if it’s still a pending purchase. Mr. Huey and Mr. Stegink reported 



-2- 

that the closing date was moved to December, so all environmental work can be done before the 
closing. 

 
Director’s/Staff Comments:  Ms. Masten introduced our newest staff member, Andrea Clary, to 
the Board. 

 

Board Comments:  None to report. 
 

Next Meeting: The next JCBRA Board Meeting is scheduled for Thursday, November 2, 2023, 

at 7:30 a.m. at One Jackson Square, East Conference Room on the 11th Floor. 

 
Adjourned: 7:43 a.m.  

 

Respectfully submitted by Alex Masten and Andrea Clary, JCBRA Staff. 
 

 

 



ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
CHECKING ACCOUNT 12,745.41$          
TIF ACCOUNT 292,790.11
CHECKING ACCOUNT- ZM BCRLF 153,483.98
LOCAL BRWNF REVOLV. FUND 38,730.00
SHORT TERM REC - ZM 35,536.68

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 533,286.18

OTHER ASSETS
NOTE REC - ZM BCRLF 384,981.30

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 384,981.30

TOTAL ASSETS 918,267.48$        

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
A/P GENERAL 8,667.40$            

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,667.40

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
COUNTY OF JACKSON LOAN 117,500.00

TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES 117,500.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 126,167.40

NET ASSETS
UNRESTRICTED FUND EQUITY 702,791.93
EXCESS REVENUE OVER EXPENSE 89,308.15

TOTAL NET ASSETS 792,100.08

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS 918,267.48$        

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

October 31, 2023

11/29/2023 at 8:25 PM November 29, 2023



Current Month Year to Date
REVENUES
EPA ASSESSMENT GRANT 12,322.09$           75,977.10$             
TIF INCOME 49,965.76 122,587.86
OTHER INCOME - BRA 0.00 3,500.00
INTEREST INCOME - BRA 4.23 35.33
INTEREST INCOME - ZM BCRLF 38.66 362.66
INTEREST INCOME - TIF ACCT 73.57 648.32

TOTAL REVENUES 62,404.31 203,111.27

EXPENSES
STAFF TIME - BRA - BCRLF 0.00 3,358.58
CONSULTING - BRA - BCRLF 8,667.40 80,878.66
EPA ASSESSEMENT EXPENSE - BRA 0.00 2,585.82
TIF REIMBURSEMENT EXP - BRA 0.00 26,794.06
BANK FEES - BRA 51.00 186.00

TOTAL EXPENSES 8,718.40 113,803.12

EXCESS REVENUE OVER EXPENSE 53,685.91$           89,308.15$             

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY

For the Ten Months Ending October 31, 2023

11/29/2023 at 8:25 PM Page: 1November 29, 2023



Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by ID. Report is printed with shortened descriptions and in Detail Format. 
Date Reference Jrnl Trans Description Debit Amt Credit Amt Balance

Account Description
1010-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance 12,746.18

CHECKING ACCOUNT 10/3/23 1426 CDJ The Enterprise Group of Jackso 2,585.82
10/3/23 1427 CDJ Fishbeck 9,736.27
10/6/23 Fishbeck/Envirol CRJ ASAP Grant Payment 12,322.09
10/16/23 Bank s/c GENJ Bank statement charge-Genl 5.00
10/31/23 Interest GENJ Oct interest 4.23

Current Period Change 12,326.32 12,327.09 -0.77
10/31/23 Ending Balance 12,745.41

1020-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance 281,521.78

TIF ACCOUNT 10/3/23 Open acct GENJ Transfer to New LBRF Acct, per guidelines 38,766.00
10/4/23 2023 Summer TIFCRJ Blackman Twp 49,965.76
10/16/23 Bank s/c GENJ Bank statement charge- TIF 5.00
10/31/23 Interest GENJ Oct interest 73.57

Current Period Change 50,039.33 38,771.00 11,268.33
10/31/23 Ending Balance 292,790.11

1025-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance 150,488.93
CHECKING ACCOUNT- ZM BCRLF 10/16/23 Bank s/c GENJ Bank statement charge- ZM 5.00

10/18/23 Sept 2020 CRJ Zimmer Marble 2,961.39
10/31/23 Interest GENJ Oct interest 38.66

Current Period Change 3,000.05 5.00 2,995.05
10/31/23 Ending Balance 153,483.98

1035-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance

LOCAL BRWNF REVOLV. FUND 10/3/23 Open acct GENJ
Open New Acct - transfer from TIF acct per 
guidelines 38,766.00

10/16/23 Bank fee GENJ
Bank fee for incoming wire transfer (to open 
acct) 36.00
Current Period Change 38,766.00 36.00 38,730.00

10/31/23 Ending Balance 38,730.00

Account ID

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
General Ledger

For the Period From Oct 1, 2023 to Oct 31, 2023

11/29/2023 at 8:25 PM Page: 1



Date Reference Jrnl Trans Description Debit Amt Credit Amt Balance
Account Description

Account ID

1150-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance 35,536.68
SHORT TERM REC - ZM

10/31/23 Ending Balance 35,536.68

1205-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance 387,942.69
NOTE REC - ZM BCRLF 10/18/23 Sept 2020 CRJ Zimmer Marble - Sept 2020 loan pmt 2,961.39

Current Period Change 2,961.39 -2,961.39
10/31/23 Ending Balance 384,981.30

2005-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance -12,322.09

A/P GENERAL 10/3/23 1426 CDJ
The Enterprise Group of Jackso - Invoice: Conf 
reimb 2,585.82

10/3/23 1427 CDJ Fishbeck - Invoice: 427437 5,616.74
10/3/23 1427 CDJ Fishbeck - Invoice: 427436 252.08
10/3/23 1427 CDJ Fishbeck - Invoice: 427445 3,867.45
10/10/23 429271 PJ Fishbeck 180.00
10/10/23 429190 PJ Fishbeck 3,687.50
10/10/23 429263 PJ Fishbeck 358.50
10/10/23 429200 PJ Fishbeck 4,161.40
10/10/23 429198 PJ Fishbeck 280.00

Current Period Change 12,322.09 8,667.40 3,654.69
10/31/23 Ending Balance -8,667.40

2025-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance -117,500.00
COUNTY OF JACKSON LOAN

10/31/23 Ending Balance -117,500.00

3005-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance -702,791.93
UNRESTRICTED FUND EQUITY

10/31/23 Ending Balance -702,791.93

4815-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance -63,655.01

EPA ASSESSMENT GRANT 10/6/23 Fishbeck/Envirol CRJ ASAP Grant Payment - Fishbeck/Envirologic 12,322.09
Current Period Change 12,322.09 -12,322.09

10/31/23 Ending Balance -75,977.10

11/29/2023 at 8:25 PM Page: 2



Date Reference Jrnl Trans Description Debit Amt Credit Amt Balance
Account Description

Account ID

4825-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance -72,622.10
TIF INCOME 10/4/23 2023 Summer TIFCRJ Blackman Twp - 2023 Summer TIF 49,965.76

Current Period Change 49,965.76 -49,965.76
10/31/23 Ending Balance -122,587.86

4905-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance -3,500.00
OTHER INCOME - BRA

10/31/23 Ending Balance -3,500.00

4910-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance -31.10
INTEREST INCOME - BRA 10/31/23 Interest GENJ Oct interest 4.23

Current Period Change 4.23 -4.23
10/31/23 Ending Balance -35.33

4915-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance -324.00
INTEREST INCOME - ZM BCRLF 10/31/23 Interest GENJ Oct interest 38.66

Current Period Change 38.66 -38.66
10/31/23 Ending Balance -362.66

4920-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance -574.75
INTEREST INCOME - TIF ACCT 10/31/23 Interest GENJ Oct interest 73.57

Current Period Change 73.57 -73.57
10/31/23 Ending Balance -648.32

5095-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance 3,358.58
STAFF TIME - BRA - BCRLF

10/31/23 Ending Balance 3,358.58

5710-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance 72,211.26

CONSULTING - BRA - BCRLF 10/10/23 429271 PJ
Fishbeck - TIF Capture professional fees thru 
9/29/23 (not grant reimb) 180.00

10/10/23 429190 PJ
Fishbeck - Lost RR Museum prof. services thru 
9/29/23 3,687.50

10/10/23 429263 PJ
Fishbeck - Blkman Chtr Twp professional 
services thru 9/29/23 358.50

11/29/2023 at 8:25 PM Page: 3



Date Reference Jrnl Trans Description Debit Amt Credit Amt Balance
Account Description

Account ID

10/10/23 429200 PJ
Fishbeck - 137 S.Main St/JDL Project, 
professional services thru 9/29/23 4,161.40

10/10/23 429198 PJ
Fishbeck - MI Psych Services, professional 
services thru 9/29/23 280.00
Current Period Change 8,667.40 8,667.40

10/31/23 Ending Balance 80,878.66

5720-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance 2,585.82
EPA ASSESSEMENT EXPENSE - BRA

10/31/23 Ending Balance 2,585.82

6005-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance 26,794.06
TIF REIMBURSEMENT EXP - BRA

10/31/23 Ending Balance 26,794.06

9005-BRA-000 10/1/23 Beginning Balance 135.00
BANK FEES - BRA 10/16/23 Bank s/c GENJ Bank statement charge- ZM 5.00

10/16/23 Bank s/c GENJ Bank statement charge- TIF 5.00
10/16/23 Bank s/c GENJ Bank statement charge-Genl 5.00

10/16/23 Bank fee GENJ
Bank fee for incoming wire transfer (to open 
acct) 36.00
Current Period Change 51.00 51.00

10/31/23 Ending Balance 186.00

11/29/2023 at 8:25 PM Page: 4



 
 
 

 

 
 
 

December 7, 2023  
JCBRA Invoice Report  

 
US EPA Assessment Grant:: 

Hazardous and Petroleum Portions  AMOUNT 

Revenue $300,000.00 

Expenses: 
Fishbeck – Blackman Township Project through 
9/29/2023:  
Fishbeck – J.D.L. Project expenses through 
9/29/2023: 
Fishbeck – J.D.L. Project expenses through 
10/27/2023 
Fishbeck – Commissary PFET Project expenses 
through 10/27/2023: 
Fishbeck – Lost RR Museum expenses through 
9/29/2023 
Fishbeck – Lost RR Museum expenses through 
10/27/2023 
Fishbeck – MI Psych Services expenses through 
9/29/2023 
Fishbeck – USEPA Grant Programmatic Activities 
through 10/27/2023 
 
Total Expenses for approval: 
 
Total GRANT spent to date: 
Available GRANT balance:  

 
$358.50 
 
$4,161.40 
 
$2,249.55 
 
$75.50 
 
$3,687.50 
 
$158.25 
 
$280.00 
 
$405.00 
 
 
$11,375.70 
 
$228,997.58 
$  71,002.42 

 
 
ZM BCRLF LOAN STATUS/ACTIVITIES: 

FUND CATEGORY AMOUNT 

Revenue  

Original Zimmer Marble BCRLF Loan 
Balance as of 11/28/2023: $414,595.20 

 
$800,000.00 (Current through 12/01/2020) 

Expenses: 
None to report.  
 
Total Expenses: 

 
 
 
$0 

 
TIF Account Expenses:  
Fishbeck for TIF Capture related expenses through 9/29/2023:  $180.00 
    
TOTAL TIF Account Expenses:     $180.00 
  

Total to be approved by the JCBRA Board of Directors on 12/07/2023:  $11,555.70 



 

 

Scope of Services 
 

Contract for Professional Services 
Jackson County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 

Applicable to Agreement February 7, 2019 
Work Order No. 121 Dated November 27, 2023  

 

Between 
 

JACKSON COUNTY BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (CLIENT) 
ONE JACKSON SQUARE 
JACKSON, MICHIGAN 49201 
 

And 
 

FISHBECK 
2960 INTERSTATE PARKWAY 
KALAMAZOO, MICHIGAN 49048 
 
Subject: Machining Momentum, 433 Condad, Blackman TWP  
Funding: EPA Assessment Grant – Hazardous Substances  
 
CLIENT requests that FISHBECK perform the following in accordance with the terms of the above-referenced 
Agreement and as described in this “Scope of Services.”  FISHBECK will begin work on this Work Order and complete 
the services as described in the attached “Scope of Services.” FISHBECK and CLIENT have designated the following 
representatives for this “Scope of Services”: 
 
David A. Stegink 269.544.6977 
Name (FISHBECK) Phone 
 
Alex Masten, Executive Director 517.788.4455 
Name (CLIENT) Phone 
 
If CLIENT accepts this Scope of Services, please sign this Work Order on behalf of CLIENT and return to the FISHBECK 
Representative above. 
 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO: 
 
JACKSON COUNTY BROWNFIELD 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (CLIENT) FISHBECK 
 
By: Alex Masten By: David A. Stegink 
Title: Executive Director Title: Vice President – Brownfield Program Manager 
 
 
Signature: ________________________________  Signature: _______________________________  
 
Date: ____________________________________  Date:  11/27/2023 _________________________  



Work Order 121 
November 27, 2023  Fishbeck | Page 2 

 

Z:\ENVIROLOGIC\PROJECTS\PROJECTS_J\JACKSON COUNTY BRA\WORK ORDERS\WORK ORDER #121 MOMENTUM MACHINING.DOCX 

I. Scope of Work  

Background  

Machining Momentum of Hanover, MI wishes to acquire an industrial property in Blackman TWP for use to help 
expand their business.  The site is a former Machine Shop (Waller Machine).   

Scope of Work  

Fishbeck will secure eligibility for the site. 

We will conduct a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment in accordance with the requirements of the ASTM 
E1527 standard and the rules for All Appropriate Inquiry.   

We anticipate that the Phase I ESA will identify Recognized Environmental Conditions that necessitate further 
assessment.  To keep progress on the project moving forward, this work order also considers a conceptual Phase 
II Environmental Site Assessment.  Fishbeck will prepare the Sampling and Analysis Plan and Health and Safety 
Plan for U.S. EPA approval.  

Fishbeck will install soil borings and vapor pins as appropriate to evaluate site conditions.  We will sample soil and 
groundwater for potential contaminants as appropriate including volatile organic compounds, polynuclear 
aromatic hydrocarbons, metals, PCBs, and/or PFAS. If appropriate, we will sample soil gas beneath the building for 
volatile organic compounds using EPA Method TO-15.   

As appropriate, we will prepare a Phase II Environmental Site Assessment report or Baseline Environmental 
Assessment. A Due Care Document will be prepared and upon completion of the work, ACRES will be updated.  

II. Compensation  

Compensation for services provided under this Work Order will be invoiced at the rates shown in the Master 
Services Agreement between FISHBECK and CLIENT and completed on a time and materials basis.  

Phase I ESA 
Professional Services ...................................................................................................................................... $ 3,000 
Expenses ........................................................................................................................................................ $ 350 
Subtotal ................................................................................................................................................... $ 3,350 

Phase II ESA (if required): 
Field  Staff ...................................................................................................................................................... $ 4,000 
Drilling Expense .............................................................................................................................................. $ 3,000 
Field Expenses ................................................................................................................................................ $ 1,000 
Analytical Expenses ........................................................................................................................................ $ 8,000 
Project Reporting ........................................................................................................................................... $ 5,000 
Subtotal: .................................................................................................................................................. $ 21,000 

TOTAL ...................................................................................................................................................... $ 24,350 

III. Schedule  

We will initiate project activities immediately. We envision initial field work will be completed in 2023 and first 
quarter 2024 















>  Additional areas of information include:  Building Department Show Purchase Options
Access additional record information for a small convenience fee. *

*   Additional record information is free for all homeowners, click the 'Show Purchase Options' button for more information.

Owner and Taxpayer Information

Owner WALLER MACHINE CO
433 CONDAD AVE
JACKSON, MI 49202-3911

Taxpayer SEE OWNER INFORMATION

General Information for Tax Year 2023

Property Class 301 INDUSTRIAL-IMPROVED Unit 01 BLACKMAN TOWNSHIP
School District JACKSON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Assessed Value $50,600
MAP # Not Available Taxable Value $50,600
USER NUM IDX 0 State Equalized Value $50,600
USER ALPHA 1 Not Available Date of Last Name Change 07/21/2021
USER ALPHA 3 Not Available Notes Not Available
Historical District Not Available Census Block Group Not Available
USER ALPHA 2 Not Available Exemption No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption Information

Homestead Date No Data to Display

Principal Residence Exemption June 1st Final

2023 0.0000 % 0.0000 %

Previous Year Information

Land Information

Zoning Code I-1 Total Acres 0.240
Land Value $8,600 Land Improvements $10,631
Renaissance Zone No Renaissance Zone Expiration

Date
No Data to Display

ECF Neighborhood Not Available Mortgage Code No Data to Display
Lot Dimensions/Comments Not Available Neighborhood Enterprise

Zone
No

Legal Description

433 CONDAD AVE  JACKSON, MI 49202    (Property Address)
Parcel Number: 000-08-32-432-007-00 Location ID: COND-000433-0000-01

Property Owner:  WALLER MACHINE CO
Summary Information
> Commercial/Industrial Building Summary

- Yr Built: N/A
- Total Sq.Ft.: 5,472

- # of Buildings: 2

> Property Tax information found
> Utility Billing information found

> Assessed Value: $50,600 | Taxable Value: $50,600
> 1 Building Department records found

Item 1 of 1 1 Image / 0 Sketches

Year MBOR Assessed Final SEV Final Taxable

2022 $49,300 $49,300 $49,300

2021 $52,100 $52,100 $49,033

2020 $52,800 $52,800 $48,357

Lot(s) Frontage Depth

No lots found.

  Total Frontage:  0.00 ft Average Depth:  0.00 ft

https://bsaonline.com/ASSG_Sketch/GetAttachment?id=ziRg%2b1bYzqo%3d&uid=227
https://bsaonline.com/ASSG_Sketch/GetAttachment?id=ziRg%2b1bYzqo%3d&uid=227


LOTS 37 AND 38 WILDWOOD TERRACE

Land Division Act Information

Date of Last Split/Combine No Data to Display Number of Splits Left 0
Date Form Filed No Data to Display Unallocated Div.s of Parent 0
Date Created 01/01/0001 Unallocated Div.s Transferred 0
Acreage of Parent 0.00 Rights Were Transferred Not Available
Split Number 0 Courtesy Split Not Available
Parent Parcel No Data to Display

Sale History

Building Information - 4672 sq ft Industrial - Light Manufacturing (Commercial)

Floor Area 4,672 sq ft Estimated TCV $69,291
Occupancy Industrial - Light Manufacturing Class C
Stories Above Ground 1 Average Story Height 12 ft
Basement Wall Height Not Available Identical Units Not Available
Year Built No Data to Display Year Remodeled 1970
Percent Complete 100% Heat Zoned A.C. Warm & Cooled Air
Physical Percent Good 42% Functional Percent Good 90%
Economic Percent Good 95% Effective Age 43 yrs

Building Information - 800 sq ft Apartment (Commercial)

Floor Area 800 sq ft Estimated TCV $15,723
Occupancy Apartment Class D,Pole
Stories Above Ground 1 Average Story Height 8 ft
Basement Wall Height Not Available Identical Units Not Available
Year Built No Data to Display Year Remodeled No Data to Display
Percent Complete 100% Heat Package Heating & Cooling
Physical Percent Good 40% Functional Percent Good 90%
Economic Percent Good 95% Effective Age 52 yrs

**Disclaimer: BS&A Software provides BS&A Online as a way for municipalities to display information online and is not responsible for the content or accuracy of the data herein. This data
is provided for reference only and WITHOUT WARRANTY of any kind, expressed or inferred. Please contact your local municipality if you believe there are errors in the data.

Copyright © 2023 BS&A Software, Inc.

Sale Date Sale Price Instrument Grantor Grantee Terms of Sale Liber/Page

No sales history found.

http://www.bsasoftware.com/


dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


PR

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


Shane Grant dotloop verified
10/28/23 4:24 PM EDT
VVBA-EESR-JX5U-VDQY

President

Sara Grant dotloop verified
10/28/23 6:21 PM EDT
NQND-EP3O-GEFX-UWQQ

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu
https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu
https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


PR

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


PR

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


PR

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


PR

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


PR

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


Stephanie Bosanac-Mortimer
dotloop verified
10/28/23 4:02 PM EDT
FLDN-HOPT-QK2M-2CKI

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu

https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu
https://dtlp.us/L4oi-Micu-2feu


ADDENDUM TO:      ___ PURCHASE AGREEMENT                    ADDENDUM NO. ____________________ 

       ___ LISTING CONTRACT 

       ___ LEASE AND/OR OPTION AGREEMENT                 DATED _____________________________ 

 

THIS ADDENDUM IS ATTACHED TO AND MADE A PART OF A CERTAIN AGREEMENT/CONTRACT BETWEEN THE 

UNDERSIGNED PARTIES DATED   _________________________________________, _________, 

COVERING  PROPERTY  LOCATED  IN  THE   _____________________________________________________ 

OF______________________________________________,  COUNTY  OF _____________________________,  

STATE OF MICHIGAN,  COMMONLY  KNOWN  AS ________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________. 

******************************************************************************************************************************** 

IT IS AGREED AND UNDERSTOOD THAT ANY ADDITIONS OR CHANGES SHOWN BELOW SUPERSEDE THE ORIGINAL 

AGREEMENT/CONTRACT.   ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS REMAIN THE SAME. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESPOND BY _____________________________ 

 

      BUYER(S)         SELLER(S)  ____________________________     ____________________________  ________________ 

    Signature         Signature           Date 

RESPONSE: 

   

      ACCEPT     REJECT      EXCEPT: SEE ADDENDUM ______________________________________________ 

 

 

      BUYER(S)         SELLER(S)  ____________________________     ____________________________  ________________ 

    Signature         Signature           Date 

 

    

    

   _________________________     _________________________      __________________    

                    Acknowledgment        Acknowledgment              Date 

 

DISCLAIMER:  This form is provided as a service of the Jackson Area Association of REALTORS.  Users of this form are expected to review the form 

and the details of the transaction to ensure that each section of the form is appropriate for the transaction.  The Jackson Area Association of 

REALTORS is not responsible for the use or misuse of this form, or for misrepresentations or warranties made in connection with this form. 

 

                                              JACKSON AREA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS                             03/2018      
 

 

2

11/27/2023

09/27/2023

Township

Blackman Jackson

433 Condad Avenue, Jackson, MI 49202

 
Sales price to be $95,000.00. 
 
Property to be sold as-is with any remaining personal property on site on date of closing. 
 
Closing to be on or before March 1, 2024.

11/28/2023

Shane Grant
dotloop verified
11/28/23 7:26 AM EST
KJY2-L6OI-FGYC-S5TL Sara Grant

dotloop verified
11/28/23 2:31 PM EST
UPEQ-RCRE-GQSF-GNUH

Jeanna Roderick
dotloop verified
11/28/23 1:44 PM EST
IPXO-BRNS-ETPL-HKIB

Shane Grant
dotloop verified
11/28/23 7:26 AM EST
783S-GTO8-O29Y-PTCW Sara Grant

dotloop verified
11/28/23 2:31 PM EST
KEX4-AAAW-P1XA-RZK5

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/VVVi-EL65-yl6y

https://dtlp.us/VVVi-EL65-yl6y
https://dtlp.us/VVVi-EL65-yl6y
https://dtlp.us/VVVi-EL65-yl6y
https://dtlp.us/VVVi-EL65-yl6y
https://dtlp.us/VVVi-EL65-yl6y
https://dtlp.us/VVVi-EL65-yl6y


 

 
 

 
2023 End of Year Report 

 
Based upon the approved 2023 Scope of Work for The Jackson County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
(JCBRA), the achieved objectives are described below: 

 

 Work with developers to continue to seek eligible projects to provide funding for environmental 
assessments of Brownfield sites to redevelop and reuse them within the community:  
 

a. Aquarian Exposition – Finalizing a Due Care Document. 

b. Michner Plating Michner Plating (506 N Mechanic, City of Jackson) – EPA is scheduling public 

meeting opportunities 

c. Michner Plating (Angling Street, City of Jackson) – We are not aware of EGLE releasing results 

of its investigation and are waiting to hear back about them. 

d. Jackson County –Armory Property and excess Fairgrounds property. This project has been 

terminated. The roof of the commissary partially collapsed and we understand the County now 

wishes to explore complete demolition. 

e. Community Action Agency –CAA is selling property to the city.  Project terminated. 

f. Kelcade Development –No updates. 

g. Jackson District Library –The first sampling event of subslab air is complete and no 

contaminants were found.  The drinking water well was also tested and no contaminants found in 

water either.  JDL has informed staff that they are moving forward with the purchase of the site.  A 

Baseline Environmental Assessment has been prepared for that transaction.   

h. Lost Railway Museum –Field work completed and laboratory results from the first of two sampling 

events showed no petroleum vapors under the building.  The second sampling is scheduled for 

December 2023. 

i. Michigan Psychological Services –Eligibility acceptance received.  Have met with General 

Contractor for the project.  They are working on budgets and drawings of the planned 

improvements so that we can share same with Township Assessor to develop property valuation 

estimates for the Brownfield Plan. 

j. Blackman TWP Acquisition –All field work completed, low level contamination found and a 

Baseline Environmental Assessment has been prepared. 

k. TIF Statements for 2023 Winter Taxes for Brownfield projects will be completed in December. 

l. While not a current project, the Board will be interested in hearing that the property at 145 W. 

Monroe has sold to a new party on land contract.  The new owner and Fishbeck met with EGLE, 

but was unable to secure grant/loan for the required remediation at this site.  Clearly the prior work 

has greatly assisted in advancing this property further. 

m. At the July meeting, it was presented that the Jackson Airport plans to redo the control towers and 

provide solar panel covered parking. 



 Work closely with all County municipalities to coordinate Brownfield redevelopment and best use of grant 
funds:  

a. JCBRA Staff facilitated and attended numerous meetings with prospects and municipalities to 
move Brownfield projects to fruition.  

b. JCBRA Staff prepares documentation and presents at Jackson County and township meetings 
to obtain consent resolutions of approval for Brownfield Plans, as needed. 

 

 Promote Brownfield sites to priority prospects: 
a. Brownfield sites were presented to prospects as well as the Michigan Economic Development 

Corporation for those searching for vacant land or buildings; and are featured on the Brownfield 
and site search pages of The EG’s Web site.  

b. The Enterprise Group’s available site and property database is linked to the Greater Ann Arbor 
Region (GAAR) – Zoom Prospector web site at www.GreaterAnnArborRegion.org , which gives 
Jackson County properties more national and state-wide exposure, and provides demographic 
and workforce reports for a specified radius for properties.  

 

 Continue to reinvigorate public outreach to increase public participation: 
a. The EG and County Web sites both now post the County BRA board packets, when distributed. 
b. The monthly Board packet information is emailed to the BRA Task Force and to the Cooperative 

Partners noted in the U.S. EPA Grant Applications.  
c.     The EG sends various email promotions and other EG communications to approximately 1,200 

individuals, which include information about the JCBRA. JCBRA information is also shared on 
The EG’s social media channels.  

 

 Continue to improve Brownfield Redevelopment marketing collateral and enhanced website promotion 
and social media efforts: 

The JCBRA Partner Page on The Enterprise Group of Jackson’s web site includes a Fact Sheet for 
the US EPA Assessment Grants. Staff added attachments found on the web site. The link is as 
follows: http://enterprisegroup.org/partners/jcbra/.  

 

 Prepare and/or oversee the preparation of grant applications, as appropriate: 
The EG, working as staff to the JCBRA, has been successful in bringing brownfield redevelopment 
projects to the JCBRA Board for approval, and to date, have expended approximately $229,000 
(through 11/021/2023) of the $300,000 since the grant started in October of 2020. We continue to 
work with developers and look at projects we know will make a positive impact on our community.  
The term of the grant ends September 30, 2024 with remaining funds obligated to current projects. 

 

 Additional News for 2023: 
a. At their February Board Meeting, the Board approved creating a budget for the JCBRA for 2023. 
b. The EPA Assessment Grant was approved for a one year extension from 9/30/23. 
c.     Zimmer Marble continues to make monthly payments. The balance of their loan is $420,517.98 

as of 10/18/2023. 
d. The 2023 summer tax increment finance (TIF) revenue received totaled approximately $84,000. 
e. The 2022 Annual Tax Increment Finance Reports were filed with the Michigan Economic 

Development Corporation, prior to the annual deadline of July 26, 2023. All active Jackson 
County Brownfield Plans were included in the reporting. The reports are available upon request. 

f.     Staff attended the National Brownfields Conference in August 2023 that was held in Detroit. 
 

 

http://www.greaterannarborregion.org/
http://enterprisegroup.org/partners/jcbra/


 
 

 

2024 Scope of Work 
 

 

1. Work with developers to continue to seek eligible projects to provide funding for 

environmental assessments of Brownfield sites to redevelop and reuse them within the 

community.  

 

2. Work closely with all County municipalities to coordinate Brownfield redevelopment and 

best use of funds. This includes managing Tax Increment Financing invoicing, collection and 

distribution for active Brownfields, in collaboration with Fishbeck. 

 

3. Administer the U.S. EPA Assessment Grants, in collaboration with Fishbeck. 

 

4. Promote Brownfield sites to priority prospects. 

 

5. Continue to reinvigorate public outreach to increase public participation. 

 

6. Continue to improve Brownfield Redevelopment marketing collateral and enhanced website 

promotion and social media efforts. 

 

7. Prepare and/or oversee the preparation of grant applications, as appropriate.  

 



 
 

The Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
of Jackson County 

Served By The Enterprise Group 

 

2024 Board of Directors 
As of 10/25/2023 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

100 E. Michigan Avenue, Suite 1100         Jackson, Michigan 49201          517-788-4455      

   “Brownfields before Greenfields” 

  

 
James E. Shotwell, Jr., Vice Chair (3/31/2024) 

Jackson County Commissioner 

120 W. Michigan Avenue 
Jackson, MI  49201 

(517) 768-8623 (County) 

(517) 783-1258 (Work)  
(517) 783-6472 Fax 

jshotwel@co.jackson.mi.us  

 

Ted Hilleary, Treasurer (3/31/2024) 
Consumers Energy-retired 

4738 Pin Oak Trail 

Jackson, MI  49201 
(517) 416-8989 

Theohilleary9@hotmail.com   

 
Mark Schopmeyer, Secretary (3/31/2025) 

Jackson College-retired 

1116 Hinckley Blvd. 
Jackson, MI  49203 

517-745-7563 (cell) 

Schopmeyer.mark@gmail.com  
 

A.J. Crownover, (3/31/2024) 

ReMax Mid-Michigan 
2300 W. Michigan Avenue 

Jackson, MI  49202 

(517) 262-5840 (cell) 

AJ@AJCrownover.com  
 

 

Laura Schlecte, (3/31/2027) 

Jackson City Council Rep. 
161 W. Michigan Ave. 

Jackson, MI  49201 

(734) 660-4260 
laura@7803800.com 

  

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
Brad Runkel, Chairman (3/31/2027) 

Consumers Energy 

1945 W. Parnall Road 

Jackson, MI  49201 
(517) 788-2980 

(517) 788-1064 Fax 

btrunkel@cmsenergy.com  
 

James Seitz (3/31/2025)  

Onsted Community Schools-retired 
3705 W. Primilia Lane 

Jackson, MI 49201 

(517) 787-7492 

(517) 795-9215 (cell) 
seitz.jim@gmail.com  

 

Brad Brelinski, (3/31/2025) 
Curtis, Curtis & Brelinski, P.C.  

120 W. Michigan Avenue, Suite 1500  

Jackson, MI  49201 

(517) 787-9481 
(517) 787-5622 Fax 

brad@curtiscurtislaw.com  

 
Pete Jancek, (3/31/2027) 

Township Supervisor Rep. 

Blackman Charter Township 
1990 W. Parnall Road 

Jackson, MI  49201 

(517) 788-4345 

pjancek@blackmantwp.com  
 

Alex Masten, JCBRA Exec. Director 

Debbie Kelly, JCBRA Staff 
The Enterprise Group of Jackson, Inc. 

100 E. Michigan Avenue, Suite 1100 

Jackson, MI  49201 
(517) 788-4458 - Alex 

(517) 782-0061 Fax 

amasten@enterprisegroup.org  

dkelly@enterprisegroup.org  

mailto:steveshotwell0829@yahoo.com
mailto:Theohilleary9@hotmail.com
mailto:Schopmeyer.mark@gmail.com
mailto:AJ@AJCrownover.com
mailto:laura@7803800.com
mailto:btrunkel@cmsenergy.com
mailto:seitz.jim@gmail.com
mailto:brad@curtiscurtislaw.com
mailto:pjancek@blackmantwp.com
mailto:amasten@enterprisegroup.org
mailto:dkelly@enterprisegroup.org


 

 
2024 MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

Between 

THE ENTERPRISE GROUP OF JACKSON, INC. 
And 

THE BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF JACKSON COUNTY 
 

This management agreement establishes the terms of the relationship between the Enterprise Group of Jackson, Inc. (EG) and 

the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority of Jackson County (JCBRA). This management agreement may be terminated by 

either party with 30 days written notice. All files, records and correspondence are considered the property of the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority of Jackson County and shall be returned upon termination of the management agreement. 

 

The EG will provide the following staff services toward the daily operation of the JCBRA; as authorized by the JCBRA 

Board of Directors in its adopted annual Scope of Work and Budget: 

 The development and approval of an annual Scope of Work and Budget for the JCBRA Board as its performance guide 

and financial plan, 

 Short and long-term JCBRA staffing by The Enterprise Group (EG), 

 Oversight of the US EPA Assessment Grants and Brownfield Revolving Loan Fund (BRLF), and other activities of the 

JCBRA, as negotiated,  

 Work closely with all County municipalities to coordinate Brownfield redevelopment and best use of funds. This 

includes managing Tax Increment Financing invoicing, collection and distribution for active Brownfields, in 
collaboration with Envirologic, 

 Oversight and maintenance of the JCBRA Partner Page on The EG website,  

 Maintenance of all financial, loan, programmatic and other records, as legally required, 

 The creation and timely distribution of all reports legally required by the JCBRA, its program providers and financial 

supporters, taking care to nurture good communications with the providers and constituents, 

 Participation and support of the County’s annual audit of JCBRA activities that reflects routine government accounting 

standards, to be presented independently from The EG annual audit, 

 Project management services relating to any or all of the following are authorized activities of EG staff in the 

performance of their responsibilities to the JCBRA: 

 The identification of properties suitable for Brownfield Redevelopment, and 

 The combination, development and re-development of those, and other, properties, as warranted, and 
 The construction, sale, lease and/or management of buildings, any and all of which may be specifically undertaken 

to stabilize and strengthen the economic base of Jackson County, and 

 Other services or activities as may be mutually agreed upon by the Boards of the JCBRA and The EG. 

 

In return for these management services, no fixed compensation is expected from the JCBRA. Staff will prepare invoices that 

will be submitted to the various grant funding agencies or to be paid from BCRLF revenues, as budgeted, reflecting staff time 

spent on specific activities. The EG Accounting Department will compute fringes and wages based upon JCBRA staff hours 

submitted and provide JCBRA Staff with an invoice for EG Staff time billed. Payments for these services are due to The EG 

upon receipt from the respective funding sources and will not exceed actual time spent. This agreement was approved by the 

JCBRA Board at their Annual JCBRA Board Meeting on December 7, 2023. 

 
FOR THE JCBRA:     FOR THE ENTERPRISE GROUP: 
_____________________________   _____________________________  
Brad Runkel, Chairperson    Tim Rogers, President and CEO 
 
______________________________   ______________________________   
Date      Date 



 

2024 Monthly Schedule 
 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act (P.A. 267 of 1976, as amended) the following public 

meeting dates have been established by the Jackson County Brownfield Redevelopment 

Authority Board, although the Board will meet on a monthly basis in 2024; and cancelled 

meetings will be posted approximately one week prior to the meeting: 

 

DATE  TIME LOCATION 

 

January 4th 
 

1st Thursday/Month 
 

7:30 a.m. 
One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 100 
E. Michigan Avenue, Jackson, MI 

 

February 1st  
 

1st Thursday/Month 
 

7:30 a.m. 
One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 100 
E. Michigan Avenue, Jackson, MI 

 

March 7th 
 

1st Thursday/Month 
 

7:30 a.m. 
One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 100 
E. Michigan Avenue, Jackson, MI 

 

April 4th  
 

1st Thursday/Month 
 

7:30 a.m. 
One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 100 
E. Michigan Avenue, Jackson, MI 

 

May 2nd  
 

1st Thursday/Month 
 

7:30 a.m. 
One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 100 
E. Michigan Avenue, Jackson, MI I 

 

June 6th 
 

1st Thursday/Month 
 

7:30 a.m. 
One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 100 
E. Michigan Avenue, Jackson, MI 

 

July 11th 
 

2nd Thursday/Month 
 

7:30 a.m. 
One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 100 
E. Michigan Avenue, Jackson, MI 

 

August 1st  
 

1st Thursday/Month 
 

7:30 a.m. 
One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 100 
E. Michigan Avenue, Jackson, MI 

 

September 5th 
 

1st Thursday/Month 
 

7:30 a.m. 
One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 100 
E. Michigan Avenue, Jackson, MI 

 

October 3rd 
 

1st Thursday/Month 
 

7:30 a.m. 
One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 100 
E. Michigan Avenue, Jackson, MI 

 

November 7th  
 

1st Thursday/Month 
 

7:30 a.m. 
One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 100 
E. Michigan Avenue, Jackson, MI 

 

December 5th  

 

1st Thursday/Month 

 

7:30 a.m. 

One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 100 
E. Michigan Avenue, Jackson, MI 

 

The above schedule will be observed and all interested persons, organizations, agencies and 

institutions are welcome. For advance notice of Board meetings, cancellations and/or special 

meetings please contact Alex Masten, Andrea Clary, or Debbie Kelly (JCBRA Staff) at The 

Enterprise Group of Jackson (517) 788-4455 or examine the bulletin board located in the 

lobby of the County Tower Building, 120 W. Michigan Avenue, Jackson, Michigan. 

 



 
 

 

2024 JCBRA Budget 
 

 

Estimated Revenues: 

EPA Grant Reimbursements     $  70,000 

TIF Capture from Summer and Winter taxes   $  90,000 

Interest on Bank Accounts     $       300 

BCRLF Loan Repayment – ZM Properties   $  35,536 

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES   $195,836 

 

 

Estimated Expenses: 

EG Management Agreement     $    8,000 

TIF Reimbursements      $  42,000 

TIF Capture Expenses      $    5,400 

EPA Grant Expenses (through 9/30/2024)   $  70,000 

Bank Fees       $       180 

TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENSES   $125,580 

 

 

NET INCOME      $  70,256 

 

 

OTHER: 

Long-Term Debt to County of Jackson   $117,500 


	JCBRA Meeting Minutes 10 05 2023
	Work Order #121 Momentum Machining
	433 Condad BSA (2)
	Multiple Documents - 2023-11-28T222402.472
	Updated Project Funding Application
	2023 End of Year Report
	2024 Scope of Work
	2024 JCBRA Board of Directors List as of October 25 2023
	2024 EG-BRA MGT AGREEMENT
	2024 MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

	2024 Monthly Schedule
	2024 Monthly Schedule

	2024 JCBRA Budget
	10-23 Financial Statements
	Stmt of Financial Position
	Stmt of Activity
	General Ledger

	Bill report thru 9.29.2023 for 12.07.2023 Meeting
	12 07 2023 JCBRA Agenda.pdf
	ANNUAL MEETING AGENDA
	One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 11th Floor
	Call to Order
	*BRA Active Project Updates
	Old Business – None.
	New Business

	Community/Public Comments


	12 07 2023 JCBRA Agenda.pdf
	ANNUAL MEETING AGENDA
	One Jackson Square, East Conference Room, 11th Floor
	Call to Order
	*BRA Active Project Updates
	Old Business – None.
	New Business

	Community/Public Comments





